
COMMUNITY SELECT COMMITTEE

Date: Thursday, 12 July 2018
Time: 6.00pm,

Location: Shimkent Room - Daneshill House, Danestrete
Contact: Fungai Nyamukapa

Email: fungai.nyamukapa@stevenage.gov.uk     Tel: 01438 242707

Members: Councillors: S Mead (Chair), A Mitchell CC (Vice-Chair), S Barr, 
J Brown, L Harrington, R Hearn, J Mead, S-J Potter, 
S Speller and T Wren

________________________________________________________________________
AGENDA

PART 1

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

2.  MINUTES - 20 JUNE 2018

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Community Select Committee 
held on 20 June 2018

Pages 3 – 4

3.  RESIDENT ENGAGEMENT SCOPING DOCUMENT

To consider the revised Resident Engagement Scoping Document

Pages 5 – 10

4.  THIRD SECTOR SCRUTINY REVIEW REPORT

To consider the 2011 Third Sector Scrutiny Review report and the delivery of the 
2012-2015 Voluntary Sector Strategy and options for future support to the sector

Pages 11 – 74

5.  URGENT PART 1 BUSINESS

To consider any Part I business accepted by the Chair as urgent

6.  EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

To consider the following motions:

Public Document Pack



1. That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
ground that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as described 
in paragraphs 1 – 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as amended by Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006.

2. That Members consider the reasons for the following reports being in Part II 
and determine whether or not maintaining the exemption from disclosure of the 
information contained therein outweighs the public interest in disclosure. 

7.  URGENT PART II BUSINESS

To consider any Part II business accepted by the Chair as urgent

Agenda Published 04 July 2018



1

STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMUNITY SELECT COMMITTEE
MINUTES

Date: Wednesday, 20 June 2018
Time: 6.00pm

Place: Shimkent Room - Daneshill House, Danestrete

Present: Councillors: Sarah Mead (Chair)(Chair), Adam Mitchell CC (Vice-
Chair)(Vice Chair), Sandra Barr, Jim Brown, Liz Harrington, John Mead, 
Sarah-Jane Potter, Simon Speller and Tom Wren

Also in Attendance: Ugo Umunnakwe – Youth Mayor

Start Time: 6.00pmStart / End 
Time: End Time: 6.45pm

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Roni Hearn.

There were no declarations of interest.

2  RESIDENT ENGAGEMENT SCRUTINY REVIEW 

The Scrutiny Officer presented the scoping document for the Scrutiny Review of 
Resident Engagement for Members consideration.

Members considered the focus of the review and agreed that the following issues 
should be included in the review:

 The effectiveness of the residents survey;
 The use of social media/digital platforms;
 Taking best practice for other local authorities;
 Establish what currently works well and what needs improving;
 That the review considers the ladder of participation to see how this is used 

and whether the Council has listened and changed its policies – ‘You Said 
We Did’.

In relation to the residents’ survey, concern was expressed regarding the sample of 
residents used and the responses received. Officers agreed to arrange for an 
explanation of the details of the survey to a meeting of the Committee.

Officers agreed to investigate the work of other local authorities in this area including 
those authorities known to have used social media platforms and bring back the 
findings to the Committee.

Members agreed the importance of engaging Council Housing tenants as the largest 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

group of customers for the Council and also ensuring the involvement of young 
people through the Youth Council and other youth groups. Ward ‘walk throughs’ with 
local Members and officers were also a good way of engaging with local residents if 
undertaken at appropriate times. Consultation and engagement must be meaningful

Suggested witnesses for the Committee to question were agreed including relevant 
Council Officers and Executive Portfolio Holders. A number of Members also agreed 
to focus on individual areas such as identifying the Council’s current communication 
avenues, making contact with the Youth Council and bringing a focus to the 
equalities and diversity issues for the review.

It was RESOLVED that officers update the scoping document based on the 
discussions above and report back to a scheduled meeting of the Committee in July.

3  URGENT PART 1 BUSINESS 

None.

4  EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

Not required.

5  URGENT PART II BUSINESS 

None.

CHAIR

Page 4



Template Scoping Document

Community Select Committee
Scrutiny Review Title: Resident Engagement

Background issues to review – 
rationale for scrutinising this issue:

Members raised the issue of reviewing the effectiveness of the Council’s Resident Engagement 
when the committee agreed items for the work programme in March 2017. The Chair has stated 
that she is keen to look at ways that the Council carries out resident engagement, as an 
example the Chair has suggested that the representation on the Housing Management Advisory 
Board has had little movement in terms of its membership which is largely white and middle-
aged.

Is this issue covered by the Future 
Town Future Council Programme?

(i) Connected to our Customers – “Improve the accessibility of our services and the customer 
experience” – to “Increase customer satisfaction with council services” the Council will need to 
understand its resident’s needs; and (ii) Co-operative Neighbourhood Management - 
“Work with our communities to improve our neighbourhoods” – “Better understand our 
communities’ needs and priorities” to “Work with our residents to design and deliver services”. 
There are links to the above FTFC priorities as the quality of the resident engagement will 
support and complement the other initiatives that the Council is undertaking to improve the 
Council’s offer for the services it provides to residents.

Is this issue one that raises interest 
with the public via complaints or 
Members’ surgeries or with Officers?:

Resident engagement is not an area that generates customer complaints. 

Focus of the review: (State what the 
review focus will be) Members commented on the draft scoping document when it met on 20 June 2018 to amend 

and shape and content of the scoping document. Based on the issues raised by the Chair, 
officers have suggested that the following issues could provide a focus for the review by the 
Committee:

Developing more co-operative and dynamic approaches to community engagement 

 Look at the effectiveness of Resident Engagement by SBC, incorporating Consultation 

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 3



Demographic of Residents’ Survey and the diversity of currently involved groups.
 Can the Council adopt more creative, dynamic engagement? use of social media/digital 

platforms?
 Establish how and why we do resident engagement and in which areas?
 Have a focus on Housing resident engagement as this is the largest service that the 

Council operates

Aims: 
 To see how well the Council is listening, follow the ladder of participation to see how 

services and polices have changed looking at “you said, we did” – how well do we listen 
and respond?

 That the review can establish what currently works well and how can these be built upon?
 What areas need improving and how will these be addressed?
 Are there any exemplars in local government or other comparable public sector bodies 

that the Council can learn from?
 That the findings inform an overall community engagement/involvement framework for the 

council moving forwards.

Timing issues:
Are there any timing constraints to 
when the review can be carried out?

Officers will advise at the meeting if there are any timing issues to consider. The review will have 
to fit in with the timing of the other Select Committee review work programme items.

The Committee will meet on (provide 
dates if known):

Dates: Day/Month/Time/Venue
20 June 2018 – Discuss scoping with AD Communities & Neighbourhoods who will lead the  
review on the officer side supported by the Scrutiny Officer.
4 Sep 2018 –  Presentation from the Consultant Rachel Eden providing context and analysis of 
the current engagement processes and agree scope
2 October & 7 November 2018 - Interview witnesses and gather evidence
Date to be agreed to agree recommendations & final report – likely to be in late 
November/December 2018.

SBC Leads (list the Executive Portfolio Officers have suggested the following people:

P
age 6



Holders and SD’s Heads of Service 
who should appear as witnesses):  Executive Portfolio Holder(s) for Communities Cllr Jackie Hollywell

 Executive Portfolio Holder(s) for Neighbourhoods and Co-operative Working, Cllr Rob 
Broom

 Strategic Director Community, Matt Partridge
 Assistant Director Communities & Neighbourhoods, Rob Gregory (sponsor CNM 

programme, FTFTC)
 Community Development Manager, Neil Baker
 Assistant Director Customer Services, Technology and Corporate Projects, Clare Watson 

(sponsor CTOC programme, FTFC)

Any other witnesses (external 
persons/critical friend)?:

To be identified by the Committee at the scoping meeting. Possible options identified by officers:
 Critical Friend – Would it be appropriate for this review to invite an officer from another 

local authority to speak as a “critical friend”.
 Members of the public who are currently involved in Resident Engagement (officers to 

advise suitability)
 Youth Mayor/ Youth Council/Schools Council (with a focus on leisure and culture, 

opportunities)
 Consultant Rachel Eden (to share initial SWOT analysis undertaken in early 2018)
 Older People – (Age Concern, Sheltered Accommodation)
 Millennials – (local residents mid 20s to mid/late 30s – not clear how these would be 

identified perhaps via Housing? Or parents at school gate/Children’s Centres)

Allocation of lead Members on 
specific individual issues/questions:

To be identified by the Committee at the scoping meeting. 

Members will ask questions on the following areas (list the issues to address during the 
interviews):

Depending on what major strands are identified in the scope these can be allocated to lead 
Members. 

P
age 7



Any other Questions Members wish to 
cover:

Councillor Sarah-Jane Potter has agreed to focus on Equalities and Diversity
Councillor Sandra Barr and Jim Brown to focus on different models
Vice-Chair, Councillor Adam Mitchell to focus on the Council’s current resident engagement 
processes
Chair, Councillor Sarah Mead, using a list of current engagement processes provided by 
officers, to investigate how easy/difficult it is for residents to put their views across to the Council 
and how responsive is the Council?   
All Committee Members to ask questions and collect views at Residents meetings in their areas

Site visits and evidence gathering in 
the Community

Site visits to community groups etc. would be helpful to the review.
Some suggested groups and areas for a visit to the Community groups (World Forum/Youth 
Council & other youth groups/North Herts College/Older People’s forums/ Age UK/ Residential 
Sheltered Accommodation/ other groups – women’s groups, ethnic groups / LGBT)

Equalities and Diversity issues:
The review will consider what the 
relevant equalities and diversity issues 
are regarding the Scrutiny subject that 
is being scrutinised

To be identified by the lead Member – Cllr Sarah-Jane Potter

Equalities & Diversity Issues – Are there any E&D issues to consider in this review? – 

Yes, equality and diversity issues are central to a robust approach to community involvement. 
The review will need to consider opportunities for engagement and involvement for protected 
characteristic groups with regards to current structures and future proposals.

Constraints (Issues that have been 
highlighted at the scoping stage but are 
too broad/detailed to be covered by the 
review):

To be identified by the Committee at the scoping meeting 20 June 2018 (These issues can be 
captured and dealt with via other means – Briefings/email/officer action etc)

Any other matters that could be part of a wider Community Engagement Framework but are not 
directly addressed by the review should be directed to officers.

Background Documents/data that 
can be provided to the review

As identified by the Committee at the draft scoping meeting 20 June 2018:
Evidence requested: 

 Consultant Rachel Eden’s initial SWOT analysis undertaken in early 2018

P
age 8



 Officers to supply Members with a list of current engagement mechanisms
 Desk top research – Exemplars in local government (Peterborough/Hackney and Harlow 

suggested authorities to look at)
Agreed Milestones and review sign 
off  -To be agreed by Members and 
officers

Formal response from Executive Portfolio Holder (Executives have a Statutory requirement to respond to 
Scrutiny review recommendations two months after receiving a final report and recommendations of a 
review: Date Executive Portfolio responses are expected (dependent on the final report & executive 
portfolio response template publishing date):DD MM YY
Date for monitoring implementation of recommendations – final sign off (typically one year from 
completion of the review): DD MM YY (Close to this date the Select Committee will receive a report at 
a Committee meeting to agree the final sign off of the review recommendations)

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 10



Part I – Release to Press Agenda item: ##
Meeting Community Select Committee

Portfolio Area Equalities and Community Safety  

Date 2 July 2018

REVIEW OF VCS STRATEGY 2012-2015

Authors Neil Baker | 2247

Contributor Rob Gregory | 2749

Lead Officers Rob Gregory | 2749

Contact Officer Neil Baker | 2247

1 PURPOSE
1.1 The report summarises the effectiveness of the Voluntary Community Sector 

Strategy 2012-2015, and the subsequent related objectives. 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 That the committee note the outcome of the review and the effectiveness of 

the strategy during the period 2012-2015.
2.2 That the committee consider some of the opportunities in developing local 

VCS support moving forward in relation to recommissioning, grant delivery 
and service level agreements.   

3 BACKGROUND
3.1 The VCS strategy originated from the 2011-12 Scrutiny Topic Group review 

into developing a strategy for the Third Sector (see appendix D).
3.2 This initial review built upon the work undertaken by a voluntary sector 

summit and topic group where a number of VCS representatives were 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



interviewed. This work aimed to build a clear VCS strategy where the ethos 
of cooperative working was integral to the councils work as an enabler of 
community action.

3.3 The VCS strategy was envisioned to be an active document and not another 
strategy that ‘sits on a shelf’

3.4 The work was handed over to officers by the topic group in 2011 due to 
restructures in scrutiny work.   

3.5 The completed VCS strategy encompassed the strategic and operational 
delivery of VCS partnership and development from 2012 -2015, setting four 
clear priorities to be measured via objectives. These aims were as follows:
1. Voice and Representation
2. Sustainability 
3. Harnessing Corporate giving
4. Volunteering  

3.6 The VCS strategy currently lacks clear ownership, but has sat as a core 
document on our website under ‘Invest in Stevenage’

3.7 The VCS strategy included bold ambitions for the council’s relationship with 
the voluntary sector, with some actions taken forward, however the strategy 
has lacked clear action planning to realise its full potential

3.8 In the period of the strategy 2012-2015 the voluntary sector has continued to 
adapt to national challenges in sustainable funding. These challenges have 
increased competition between VCS providers, and led to mergers, charity 
closure and a large reduction in medium sized organisations, in favour of 
micro and national charities.

3.9 Within Stevenage tapered funding has been introduced in community centre 
and local charity funding, with many grants ending in 2020. This reduction in 
grants will lead to further discussions on sustainability of current VCS 
involvement. In addition to grants we also have a number of local charities 
benefiting from rent in kind policies, allowing secure tenancy of Stevenage 
Borough Council buildings 

3.10 Swingate house development will lead to the displacement of a range of VCS 
services while development takes place, this process will lead to concerns 
and uncertainty in the sector which will need to be closely managed and 
supported 

3.11 As a cooperative council Stevenage is committed to ensuring a positive and 
vibrant VCS sector that works in cooperation with the council in achieving the 
best results for our local communities    

Page 12



4 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION AND OTHER 
OPTIONS

4.1 The review found that that VCS support needs renewing and refreshing in 
light of changes in the sector and the opportunities present within FTFC 
planning. 

4.2 Opportunities and challenges in the development of future VCS support need 
full consideration to ensure the council enables VCS growth and 
development while protecting reducing public resources and ensuring value 
for money in partnerships 

5 IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications 
5.1 The review enables the council to explore fully the current support offered to 

the VCS sector in Stevenage, including current grants offered and larger 
scale advice service contracts worth 160k per year. Tapered funding and the 
potential impact on current VCS delivery will also need full exploration  

Legal Implications 
5.2 At this stage there are no legal implications, however the sustainability of the 

current VCS offer in light of funding reductions will need to be explored 
against our current contracts, and where contracts do not exist full 
consideration should be given to ensure legal arrangements are in place that 
measure the effectiveness of our partnerships 

Risk Implications 
5.3 At this stage risk is low, further risk assessment will be required dependant 

on outcomes, and the council will need to fully consider the potential effect on 
the local VCS sector of any changes in funding

Equalities and Diversity Implications 
5.4 At this stage there are no direct equality and diversity implications, however 

the importance of the sector in ensuring a diversity of activity that directly 
supports many of our community members who hold a protected 
characteristic cannot be under estimated. The sector also clearly supports 
the social economic development of the town, these factors must be given 
full consideration in planning how the council supports the VCS sector and 
commissions services moving forward. 

Service Delivery Implications 
5.5 Service Delivery implications have been considered with work undertaken on 

VCS strategy, at this stage service delivery will not be directly affected, 
however recommissioning and development of a more robust VCS support 
offer will need further work in identifying potential impact.

Page 13



Safeguarding Children Implications 
5.6 Safeguarding implications of VCS engagement and partnership will need full 

assessment in line with contracts and grant offers, this should be completed 
in line with council and national safeguarding policies and procedures  

APPENDICES
A VCS Strategy 2012-2015
B          VCS review presentation July 2018
C          Hertfordshire Compact 
D          Emerging recommendations of the Support for the Third Sector 2011 Topic 

Group

Page 14



 

 1 

 

Page 15



 

 2 

Contents  
 
Introduction ..........................................................................................................................3 

Background..........................................................................................................................4 

• Defining the voluntary and community sector ...........................................................4 

• A note on faith groups ...............................................................................................4 

• Infrastructure services...............................................................................................4 

• The voluntary sector in Stevenage............................................................................5 

• Co-operative council .................................................................................................6 

Why do we need a strategy for the sector?..........................................................................6 

• We need to improve outcomes for all in difficult economic times. .............................6 

• The community commissioning cycle........................................................................8 

• We need to reduce public spending and improve efficiency. ....................................9 

• We acknowledge the importance of the sector in meeting residents needs..............9 

• The need for new delivery models ............................................................................9 

• National drivers for change .....................................................................................10 

Priority - Voice and Representation ...................................................................................11 

• Building on the Compact .........................................................................................11 

• Strengthening links and increasing voice ................................................................11 

Priority - Sustainability .......................................................................................................14 

• Partnerships, collaborations and mergers...............................................................14 

• Transforming Infrastructure Services ......................................................................14 

• The changing face of public services ......................................................................15 

• Sustainability through co-operative working and enterprise ....................................15 

• Towards co-operative working ................................................................................17 

Priority - Harnessing corporate giving................................................................................18 

• What is the local picture of corporate and community collaboration?......................18 

• How can the business sector be enabled to help?..................................................19 

• Resourcing business brokerage..............................................................................19 

Priority - Volunteering ........................................................................................................21 

Measuring Performance.....................................................................................................23 

Our commitment to Equality...............................................................................................23 

Contact details ...................................................................................................................24 

Appendix one – A profile of Stevenage..............................................................................25 

Appendix two - How the council supports the sector. ........................................................27 

Appendix three – the Localism Act explained ....................................................................28 

 

Page 16



 

 3 

Introduction 
 
We are pleased to present the voluntary and community sector strategy for 2012 to 2015. 
The strategy proposes how we will build on the strong relationship we have with the 
voluntary and community sector in Stevenage and looks at the ways we can work together 
in the future. 
 
As a co-operative council we know that we need a strong, vibrant and flourishing sector to 
work with us as an equal partner in continuing to improve the lives of people in Stevenage. 
 
The voluntary and community sector in Stevenage is diverse and has continually evolved 
to meet the needs of our residents. We are all facing financial constraints and we need to 
work differently in order to protect the services that are so vital to people, especially during 
the current downturn. 
 
The council has been talking to the sector for some time, looking at its needs, as well as 
exploring how groups could work together in new ways. We’ve also spoken to businesses 
to learn more about what they can offer the community and how they can work in 
partnership with the voluntary and community sector. 
 
Our Vision 
 
By building on the vibrant, diverse and thriving voluntary and community sector in 
Stevenage we will work in partnership to increase its resilience and sustainability, 
preparing the sector for new opportunities. 
 
Our vision is to see the talent and experience in the sector come forward to offer a high 
quality, innovative service to groups in the community. 
 
We want the voice of the sector to be central to the way we work in the future. 
 
This strategy will lead to an agreed plan of action for the council to achieve the goals and 
ambitions presented here. 
 
We know that by working co-operatively we can achieve excellence. We look forward to 
seeing this strategy make a lasting difference to the lives of those in Stevenage. 
 
 
Cllr Sharon Taylor     Cllr Sherma Batson 
Council Leader Portfolio Holder for Communities, Health 

and Older People 

     
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

 4 

Background 
 

• Defining the voluntary and community sector 
 
The National Council for Voluntary Organisations (NCVO) defines the characteristics of the 
voluntary and community sector. These groups are value-driven, reinvest surpluses to 
further their aims and are committed to reflecting user need. 
 
Their work includes: 
 

• delivering services  

• advocating or lobbying on behalf of community causes  

• facilitating international, community and economic development  

• advancing religious faith and practice 

• raising funds 

• providing financial and other support to other voluntary and community 
organisations. 

 
 
For the purposes of this strategy, the terms voluntary and community sector and voluntary 
and community organisation will refer to the diverse range, size and scope of 
organisations in Stevenage including the following: 
 

� Voluntary organisations 
� Registered charities  
� Faith groups (see note below) 
� Community groups 
� Tenants and residents groups, community associations 
� Housing associations 
� Co-operatives and social enterprises1 
� Most sports, environmental, arts and heritage organisations 
� Grant making trusts. 
 

• A note on faith groups 
 
In referring to the voluntary and community sector, this strategy includes all faith-based 
groups in Stevenage. The council recognises the importance of all faith groups’ 
contribution to the wellbeing and cohesion of our community and they are included in our 
definition of the voluntary and community sector. 
 
The council’s Equalities Action Plan outlines a commitment to support the development of 
a Stevenage inter-faith group and we are committed to ensuring that faith groups feel 
suitably represented within the sector. 
 

• Infrastructure services  
 
Infrastructure organisations are organisations that exist to support frontline groups in the 
voluntary and community sector or social enterprises in achieving their aims. They offer an 

                                            
1
 Where ‘profits’ are reinvested for the benefit of members or community 

 

Page 18



 

 5 

extensive range of support services including funding advice, equipment and room hire, 
training and networking, volunteering services and more.  
 
 

• The voluntary sector in Stevenage 

 

Stevenage was the first designated new town designed to provide homes and jobs for 
people after the Second World War and the voluntary and community sector has 
continually evolved in line with its needs. 
 
Many of the early residents formed the first associations and groups to represent their 
interests and to support a range of social and welfare issues. 
 

‘the new residents were all very much 
together in those days; we all shared the 
same problems...so naturally we all 
pulled together with the same sense of 
purpose – and a wonderful community 
spirit resulted.’ M Cotter - early resident 
of Stevenage2 

 
By 1977 at least 300 community and voluntary 
groups existed in the town serving the diverse 
range of social, welfare and recreational needs 
of the town3 
 
Today the voluntary and community sector in 
Stevenage is unique in nature and size and its 
diversity is reflective of the range of needs of 
people in the town.  In broad terms there are 
particular beneficiary groups that have 
significant representation from the sector. 
These include people with disabilities, older 
people and children. Importantly the sector 
offers niche support to minority groups or 
people with needs not traditionally met by 
mainstream service provision.  
 
A breakdown of the diversity of beneficiary 
groups of these organisations provided by 
Stevenage CVS4 supports this view, illustrating 
that there are groups supporting every area of 
the community from housing and homelessness 
to isolation and social exclusion. 
 
 
 

                                            
2
 Taken from ‘First New Town’ by Jack Balchin 

3
 Stevenage Development Corporation’s public relations unit 1977. 

4
 CVS provide a range of support services to the voluntary and community sector.- 

Stevenage Borough Council has adopted 
co-operative council principles:  
 

• The council as a strong community 
leader 

• Working together with the community 
and other agencies to provide 
services based on needs  

• Communities empowered to design 
and deliver services and play an 
active role in their local community 

• A clear understanding between the 
council and our communities - this is 
what we do, this is what we will help 
you to do  

• Joined up and accessible services 
that offer value for money and focus 
on the customer   

 
The principles recognise that the support 
and partnership of organisations, residents 
and staff is needed to run services.  
 
They reflect a desire to involve the people 
that use council services in deciding how to 
provide and manage those services, to 
ensure they match local needs. 

Page 19



 

 6 

The council ensures that the voluntary and community sector has representation and voice 
by providing ten seats on the SoStevenage Partnership, where members can help to 
shape policy and the Community Strategy.5 
 
 

• Co-operative council  
 
Being a co-operative council is all about partnership. Because of its new town heritage 
Stevenage Borough Council has always worked co-operatively with the community. The 
guiding principals for a co-operative council help communities to take control of their lives 
and the services with whom they interact. 
 
Stevenage Borough Council would like to see greater involvement from citizens and 
service users, but will continue to offer support to the voluntary sector. The council has a 
long tradition of supporting the sector both in terms of direct funding and in-kind 
contributions.6  
 
As a co-operative council we wish to continue to support local groups within available 
resources, listening to needs, identifying opportunities for new kinds of support and 
exploring new forms of collaborative working. 
 
The council is moving towards a vision of a single or co-operative organisation resourced 
to provide robust, high quality infrastructure support services and helping Stevenage’s 
voluntary and community organisations grow as resilient, independent partners.     
 

Why do we need a strategy for the sector? 
 

• We need to improve outcomes for all in difficult economic times. 
 
Despite the severe financial constraints affecting all sectors, there remains the need to 
protect the social capital that the sector has worked hard to build in the town, while 
ensuring that effective, value for money services are provided. 
 
A system that effectively identifies priorities and outcomes as well as the best providers 
must be in place to ensure good use of public money. The system needs to be clearer and 
more accessible to local voluntary and community groups. 
 
We need to create a significant change in our relationship with the sector, based on clear 
priorities and outcomes that improve people’s lives rather than simply funding 
organisations and services. 
 
This does not mean that we do not value each and every one of the organisations 
operating in our community. It means that because we have less money we have to 
concentrate on the highest priorities. Therefore our emphasis will be on vulnerable 
residents and the most deprived neighbourhoods. We want to narrow the pockets of 
inequality which exist across the town, as this will ultimately benefit everyone. We will 
move towards a stronger, fairer system of commissioning ensuring priority need is met. 

                                            
5
 A profile of Stevenage can be found at appendix one 

6
 In-kind support refers to non financial support such as officer time, rent-free arrangements, subsidised fees, 

free advertising and more. See appendix two for more information. 

Page 20



 

 7 

What is commissioning? 
 

Commissioning is about planning, paying for and monitoring services. Traditional grant 
funding involved organisations approaching funders to apply for funding to support their 
existing services or to open new services. Commissioning differs as it is a cycle which 
begins with funders identifying their local priorities. They may also then assess needs and 
look at gaps in service delivery. Once priorities are decided upon, a specification is written, 
defining what outcomes the funder is looking for. Local groups are invited to tender for the 
contract, service level agreement, or grant to deliver these particular outcomes. 
 
The process is described as a cycle. A contract/grant is awarded to the organisation that 
can demonstrate how they can deliver these outcomes and offer quality and value for 
money. The funder then monitors performance and evaluates the impact of the project. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 

 8 

 

• The community commissioning cycle 

 

2 Tender 
 

• Issue a specification 

• invite groups to 
bid/tender, showing 
how they can deliver 
these priority outcomes 

 

• Assess applications 
against agreed criteria 

 

• Agree a contract / 
service level 
agreement based on 
the above. 

3 Monitor and evaluate 
 

• Identify opportunities to 
support the provider in 
delivering outcomes 

 

• Monitor performance 
and spend 
 

• Evaluate impact and 
look again at local 
priorities. 

1 Assess local needs 
 

• Agree the priorities with community partners in Stevenage and establish what 
gaps there are in services 

• Determine what resources (funding) are available 

• Decide what outcomes are required to be delivered in partnership  

• Decide how these outcomes can be delivered: what type of service is 
needed? 

P
age 22



 

 9 

 

• We need to reduce public spending and improve efficiency. 
 
As a result of the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review in October 2010, 
Stevenage Borough Council anticipated a cut of around 35% in its grant, resulting in the 
need for £3.5million of savings over the subsequent four years. 
 
In 2011/12 the council’s community funding budget was reduced by 15% (£66,692), and 
further reductions are anticipated in order to reach the overall savings target that the 
council has set itself. The intention has been to try to reduce the impact on the sector as 
much as possible through a funding process that focuses on delivering outcomes based 
on community needs, along with information and advice on how organisations can become 
more self-sustaining. 
 
As a co-operative council we wish to increase the resilience and viability of the sector and 
raise its voice and independence. To do so we need to move away from only providing 
direct assistance as we do not want these strengths to be compromised. 
 
We believe that in the future we should see more partnership working and that groups 
should be handed the freedom to design and deliver services. 
 
 

• We acknowledge the importance of the sector in meeting residents needs 
 
The role of local authorities has changed. As a co-operative council we acknowledge our 
influence as a strong community leader, responsible for ensuring stronger communities.  
 
Stevenage Borough Council recognises that it cannot fulfil this role without support from a 
thriving voluntary and community sector. 
 
Stevenage Borough Council firmly acknowledges the need for a vibrant, diverse and 
strong voluntary and community sector in order to most effectively meet local needs and 
improve quality of life for Stevenage residents. 
 
The council has adopted co-operative principals which recognise the importance of 
working with the community and other agencies to provide quality services that meet the 
needs of the residents. We recognise that the Stevenage voluntary and community sector 
is ideally placed to design and deliver these services.  
 
 

• The need for new delivery models  
 
Successive governments as well as the lead national organisations for the voluntary and 
community sector, have acknowledged the need to modernise, sustain and improve 
overall provision of infrastructure services. Now it is more important than ever for services 
to question the likelihood of long-term sustainability if the way they work remains the 
same. 
 
In Stevenage, consultation with our stakeholders has shown us that our local infrastructure 
services are highly valued, however the sector is in agreement that services could be more 
effective and accessible.  
 

Page 23



 

 10 

There is a need to re-think the way we do business. There is an awareness that services 
need to be rationalised so that we make the best use of resources, but rather than just 
cutting back on services or functions, it is important that organisations come together to 
explore innovative delivery models. 
 
This strategy reinforces the council’s commitment to supporting organisations through the 
process of change and recognises that transformation of local services may be necessary, 
not just for long-term resilience, but to promote the profile, voice and influence of the 
sector as a whole. 
 
 

• National drivers for change 
 
The Localism Act7 outlines new rights and powers for local communities, including giving 
people a new way to voice their opinion on local issues and ensuring social enterprises, 
volunteers and community groups get a chance to change or improve how things are 
done.8 
 
The recent White Paper ‘Opening Public Services’ outlines the intention to make public 
services open to a range of providers. Some organisations are preparing their 
organisation’s readiness to respond to the future funding environment and take advantage 
of opportunities that may arise from the reform of public services. 
 
In Stevenage, and across the UK, voluntary and community sector organisations are 
beginning to think, not only about how they can become more sustainable, but how they 
might position themselves for future opportunities. 
 

                                            
7
 A summary of the key points from the Localism Act can be found at appendix three. 

8
 A Plain English Guide to the Localism Act 

Page 24



 

 11 

Priority - Voice and Representation 

 

• Building on the Compact 
 
The Stevenage Compact is an agreement between Stevenage Borough Council, the 
voluntary and community sector and other local public bodies to ‘improve our relationship 
for mutual advantage’  
 
Stevenage has a thriving and diverse voluntary and community sector which has 
developed with the active support of the council and other agencies. The council has 
historically enjoyed a strong relationship with the sector and is committed to maintaining 
an open dialogue with community groups. 
 
This strategy outlines a commitment to strengthen and renew the compact in 2012 and 
beyond. 
 
As a co-operative council we would like to build on the positive dialogue we currently have 
to enable voluntary, community and faith groups to help shape policy. In January we 
hosted a summit event for voluntary and community groups in Stevenage.9 Emerging from 
that event is a new network of partners. The Stevenage Community Network will remain 
completely independent, however we will support its development. 
 
The council is committed to further develop the relationship between the two sectors for 
the benefit of the community. In light of shifting national policy, funding constraints and the 
need to work differently we would like to work closely with our community partners to 
agree a compact that will accurately capture this commitment. 
 
 

• Strengthening links and increasing voice 
 
A key issue highlighted through our dialogue with the sector was the need to improve 
communication. This is a broad area, but key themes affecting the sector seem apparent. 
Firstly, people working in the sector have consistently said that they would like to see more 
inter-agency or partnership work. The barriers to this were not cost or time. Moreover, 
members felt that they were not connected with each other and did not always know who 
else was working in the sector and how to access them. In our survey in December 2010 
55% of people stated that they ‘need help in identifying partners to collaborate with.’ We 
were also told that ‘people need to come together, both in terms of size and thematically 
similar areas of work.’10 
 
Attendees at the summit reported the need for improved sharing of information, perhaps a 
central hub for communications and marketing, to improve dialogue within the sector and 
at the same time pooling valuable resources. 
 
The Stevenage Community Network aims to bring together voluntary and community 
organisations wishing to make a difference to the sector for the benefit of the people of our 
town. It will act as a forum to exchange ideas and explore innovative ways of working. 
 

                                            
9
 For more information about how we have consulted see appendix five. 

10
 Stevenage voluntary and community sector summit January  2011 

Page 25



 

 12 

As a co-operative council we wish to enable the voice of the sector to shape policy and we 
hope in time that effective networking will bring a shared vision, ensuring the needs of the 
sector are understood. 
 
There is also the need to raise understanding and awareness of the nature and value of 
services offered by the sector amongst organisations outside of the sector and to raise its 
profile through representation. 
 
The voluntary and community sector survey showed us that only a quarter (24%) of 
respondents have ever been in touch with their voluntary sector representatives on the 
SoStevenage11 board, despite there being ten representatives from the sector on the 
board. Furthermore 18% of people interviewed did not know who their local Councillor is. 
 
The council welcomes the formation of the Stevenage Community Network and 
acknowledges the need to review the current links we have with the sector to ensure that 
all corners of the sector feel represented. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
11

 Stevenage’s local partnership works to promote the social and economic well-being of people living, 
working and visiting the town. 

What do local Councillors Do? 
 
Councils are run by elected councillors who are voted for by local people. Councillors are 
responsible for making decisions on behalf of the community about local services, 
agreeing budgets and council tax charges. 
 
Councillors are elected by the local community and are there to represent its views. Each 
councillor represents an area called a ward, serving for four years. 
 
Councillors are not paid a salary and are not council employees. Councillors provide the 
policies, and then paid employees (council officers) put them into practice. 
 
In Stevenage there are 39 councillors representing 13 wards. To find out who your local 
councillor is or how to contact them email:  
 

memberservices@stevenage.gov.uk 

Page 26



 

 13 

Objectives 
 

� We will move towards a fairer, more transparent and more accessible 
approach to commissioning and allocating community funding 

 
� We will work to promote SoStevenage representatives and local 

councillors 
 

� We will support the development of a communications hub and 
database 

 
� We will renew the Stevenage Compact, agreeing with partners on how 

and when this should happen 
 

� We will develop a work programme for continued consultation with the 
voluntary and community sector 

 
� We will support the development of the independent Stevenage 

Community Network. 
 

Page 27



 

 14 

Priority - Sustainability 

 

• Partnerships, collaborations and mergers 
 
In light of financial constraints and shifting national policy many local authorities are 
encouraging a review of how their voluntary sector is supported. There is a move to 
encourage the sector to work more collaboratively and to deliver outcomes more cost 
effectively. This is also reflected in the response of local voluntary and community sector 
members to our December 2010 survey. 
 
Encouragingly, when asked about partnership, the highest proportion of respondents 
stated that they needed help in ‘identifying partners to collaborate with’ (55%). In terms of 
planning for the future, almost three fifths (57%) are planning organisational growth and 
one in ten is planning a merger.12   
 
However, while 38% would be willing to pay for face to face advice, few would be willing to 
pay for undertaking mergers, shared services (6%) or developing partnerships (11%). It 
might be assumed that many local organisations are not confident about the principals of 
investing to save and have not started to explore the cost benefits, efficiencies and 
necessity to share functions in these changing times. 
 
The council strongly recognises partnership work as a vehicle for change and greater 
financial independence and we will continue to support local voluntary and community 
organisations to come together to form partnerships and collaborations. 
 
 

• Transforming Infrastructure Services 
 
At the Stevenage Voluntary Sector Summit in January 2011 groups were encouraged to 
tell us what the strengths are in local organisational support, as well as areas for 
improvement. Importantly, there was universal support and acknowledgment for the 
services offered by existing Stevenage infrastructure services, a view Stevenage Borough 
Council would firmly support. 
 
Nonetheless, there is a need to improve access to effective, joined up support services. 
This is mirrored nationally and is driving policy change. 
 
In Stevenage, help with finding volunteers was an issue for over half (53%) of respondents 
while almost half (49%) need help developing volunteers. Information and updates on 
employment law was considered the most important staffing need. Furthermore almost 
three fifths (58%) of respondents felt that they needed help with publicising their 
organisation. 
 
Stevenage Borough Council, with partners, would like to see frontline voluntary and 
community organisations access a wider range of high quality support including more 
volunteering brokerage and links to local businesses.  
 

                                            
12

 Stevenage voluntary and community sector survey December 2010 

Page 28



 

 15 

We would like to see infrastructure organisations remodelled to become more efficient, 
ensuring areas are not duplicated or services fragmented and importantly, to become 
more self-reliant and sustainable. 
 
We are confident that there is agreement with the sector that business models need to 
change. We have been actively engaging with the sector, inviting proposals and sharing 
ideas. 
 
This strategy later describes the rise of enterprise and other models of social innovation as 
means to building greater capacity into the sector as well as of achieving greater 
sustainability in the long-term. 
 

 

• The changing face of public services 
 
For some years, successive governments have anticipated and looked forward to an 
increased role for the voluntary and community sector13. More recently large cuts to public 
spending have lead to significant changes in the way public services are delivered. 
 
Some organisations are already taking steps to prepare their organisation’s readiness to 
respond to the future funding environment and take advantage of these future 
opportunities. 
 
In light of constrained public spending the future level of income from Government is 
uncertain. In the short term funding is likely to fall, but in the longer term contracts for 
public service delivery may lead to increased funding of the voluntary sector. 
 
The voluntary and community sector has a good reputation for innovation and creative 
thinking and the opening up of public services may lead to real benefits for groups in 
Stevenage. Increased competition will also make it more important than ever to 
demonstrate value for money, effectiveness and to seek out collaborations with local 
partners. 
 
 

• Sustainability through co-operative working and enterprise 
 
This strategy has already discussed the need to rationalise and transform ways of working 
and to become more outcome focused. However we appreciate that the sector is diverse 
and there is no one-size-fits-all solution to future stability.  
 
The public sector has traditionally been the main source of income for the sector but this is 
a rapidly changing picture. 
 
There is a growing expectation from both within the voluntary and community sector and 
funders that organisations will engage in some form of income generation in order to 
become self-sustainable. New models of working are transforming the way some areas of 
the sector do business. These include mutuals, co-operatives and social enterprises. 
 

                                            
13 Ref: the future role of the third sector in social and economic regeneration (2007) Treasury /Cabinet Office 
 

Page 29



 

 16 

 
Hertfordshire Community Meals - case study 
 
Hertfordshire Community Meals is a not-for-profit social enterprise that was established 
in 2007 to deliver meals on wheels in Hertfordshire.  
 
From small beginnings with two vehicles, seven staff and a team of volunteers, HCM 
has grown into a thriving, community focused organisations supporting vulnerable and 
disabled adults throughout Hertfordshire.  
 
 The enterprise now employs over 100 staff, is supported by 150 volunteers and runs a 
fleet of almost 50 vehicles. The enterprise is constantly finding innovative ways to add 
value to their clients and the community. 
 

Like the wider voluntary and community sector, these are organisations driven by a social 
imperative and vary from those employing one or two people, to national organisations. 
 
Unlike some voluntary organisations, co-operatives, mutuals and social enterprises are 
self-sustaining and the rise and success of these organisations during this lengthy period 
of economic downturn is being described by many in quite revolutionary terms. 

As with all businesses, these organisations compete to deliver goods and services but 
the social aim remains central to activity, and profits or surpluses are reinvested 
towards achieving that aim. 

Social enterprises operate in almost every industry in the UK. Enterprise and trading may 
include selling products or publications, providing training, renting office space to running a 
transport or membership scheme. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The government defines social enterprises as businesses with primarily social 

objectives whose surpluses are principally reinvested for that purpose in the business 

or in the community, rather than being driven by the need to maximise profit for 

shareholders and owners. 

Page 30



 

 17 

• Towards co-operative working 
 
Resources are scarce - Stevenage Borough Council needs to invest in a sector which is 
moving towards sustainability and can deliver defined outcomes. We acknowledge that 
partners are concerned about risks involved in changing the way they work, but 
entrepreneurial and innovative services can attract an increase and diversification of 
funding. Some organisations may need to extend or acquire new skills such as marketing 
or financial forecasting to survive and avail of opportunities that arise. Some partners 
believe that there may be a blurring of boundaries between the VCS, public sector and 
private enterprise.14 
 
As a co-operative council, Stevenage Borough Council encourages greater independence 
for organisations who can secure more unrestricted income promoting financial 
sustainability. The council wishes to help organisations grow as resilient, independent but 
equal partners. We know that developing a form of income generation will require a 
significant amount of time and investment, which is why the council is firmly committed to 
supporting innovative, new models from their conception.15 
 
In July 2011 the Executive Member for Community, Health and Older People wrote to over 
300 organisations in Stevenage to invite ideas and underline our commitment of support to 
the sector as a whole. 
 
 

Objectives 
 

� We will continue to promote local voluntary and community 
organisations in coming together to form partnerships and 
collaborations 

 
� We will encourage voluntary and community organisations to join the 

Stevenage Community Network 
 

� We will engage the sector in the development of robust, innovative 
infrastructure services 

 
� We will support the sector in becoming  ‘contract ready’ for new 

opportunities  
 

� We will encourage the support of innovative models in the sector 
 
 

                                            
14

 Stevenage Voluntary Sector Summit Jan 2011 

15
 More information about not-for-profit enterprise and some case studies can be found at appendix five 

 

Page 31



 

 18 

Priority - Harnessing corporate giving 
 
 

It’s difficult to find out who to talk to [about helping the local community] It’s a 
shame because people like us would be a credit to the county.  
 
We would be able to help but we just don’t know how to get into it…..it’s an 
issue of accessibility for businesses like us 

 
Stevenage Managing Director July 2011 

 
 
An emerging theme from Stevenage Borough Council’s consultation with the voluntary and 
community sector is that of corporate social responsibility or more accurately, corporate 
giving and the need to explore how the sector can make beneficial links in terms of 
sponsorship, one-off donations, the provision of volunteers and business support. 
 
The benefits to businesses of corporate social responsibility, whether it is through direct 
donations, volunteering, free use of facilities and resources, are now widely accepted. The 
business case for being a responsible business by Cranfield University identified seven 
key benefits of corporate social responsibility ranging from ‘attracting and retaining good 
quality staff’ through to ‘direct financial impact.’ 
 
However the area provides some challenges, not least the recent downturn affecting many 
areas of trade, commerce and industry. In addition the benefits referred to above are not 
applicable to all business types and sizes. Many businesses, as we heard from our 
business survey, do not know where to access information about the community or indeed, 
which areas of the community are looking for specific forms of support, for example, help 
with policy development or the use of volunteers to build a community garden. 
 
In response to our consultation in June 2011 and the need to better understand the 
potential for more private sector giving, Stevenage Borough Council commissioned a 
business sector survey investigating voluntary and community sector collaboration. In 
addition, we then conducted a second interview with the voluntary and community sector 
to ascertain what sort of help local groups are already receiving. 
 
 

• What is the local picture of corporate and community collaboration? 
 
It is clear that a significant part of the business community in Stevenage do not need to be 
sold the benefits of supporting the sector. An encouraging 39% of all respondents are 
already supporting the sector in some way. A total of 394 businesses were surveyed and it 
highlighted that over 180 different voluntary and community organisations are supported 
by 147 of the surveyed businesses.  
 
We were interested to know if corporate support was going back into the local community, 
as opposed to national or international causes. Local voluntary and community 
organisations are supported the most (73%). In addition, of those local groups receiving 
funding from the private sector, 93% receive donations from local firms. 
 

Page 32



 

 19 

Typically, businesses support the sector through direct financial support (73%), in the form 
of donations and most groups surveyed receive £1000 or less. 
 
Interestingly in-kind support is most often in the form of shared or subsidised use of 
facilities and the sharing of business skills. Approximately 29% report to release 
employees to volunteer. 
 
 

• How can the business sector be enabled to help? 
 
The most common theme throughout our survey with business was the reported need for 
more information about how they could help the community. More specifically, business 
wanted to know which organisation needed what. 
 
Many business respondents made suggestions about what they would like to see including 
a link on the council’s website, a directory of local groups and a coming together with the 
sector, such as a conference. The need for more information and a function to bring the 
two sectors together was echoed by the voluntary and community sector with many 
respondents suggesting an event and a permanent activity for brokering opportunities. 
 
‘Stevenage Council should get out into the market place and raise awareness through 
some promotional campaign and meeting employers’ 
Stevenage Director (Business sector) 
 
 

• Resourcing business brokerage 
 
The need for linking businesses with the community is clear but there are resource 
implications for current support services. 
 
We have heard from the sector that organising volunteers can be hugely time-intensive. 
Simply signposting Stevenage’s business world to a volunteer service or directly to a 
group will not always result in benefits, particularly if organisations wish to release many 
volunteers.  
 
Local infrastructure agencies are able to support or refer individuals interested in 
volunteering but have reported difficulties in, for example, accommodating requests from 
larger business. Scheduling, CRB16 checks and related administration take considerable 
time and local services are not currently resourced to carry out a large volume of requests. 
 
This strategy has already outlined our interest in new models of infrastructure support and 
we are interested in a model that might deliver a brokerage service which will benefit the 
sector and reach those businesses who tell us they would like to make a contribution. 
 
In some areas businesses are charged a fee for receiving the services of a volunteering 
agency. This helps to resource the function of the brokerage and adds value to the 
relationship.  
 

                                            
16

 Criminal Records Bureau Checks for people coming into working contact with young or vulnerable 
individuals. 
 

Page 33



 

 20 

Voluntary and community sector brokerages offer more than volunteering exchange. In 
addition they encourage businesses to offer skills and expertise, donations, gifts and 
sponsorship. We support the idea of a model which would generate revenue for the 
brokerage, through levying, for example, a fee for services such as volunteering. In return 
businesses receive tax relief, networking and local publicity and a range of other benefits 
for their organisation. 
 
There are clearly missed opportunities in terms of local business wanting to help the sector 
and businesses wanting to know about how they can make a contribution. 
 
There are already some positive examples of how the private sector is collaborating with 
the voluntary and community sector but there is no consistent approach across the town. 
Stevenage Borough Council would like to see an emerging model of infrastructure support 
able to offer a brokerage service which could harness the potential for giving from the 
private sector. 
 
‘There are businesses that would like to get involved like us but we have to go out and find 
the information. It would be more useful to have some sort of proactive engagement and 
them to say these are the projects we have at the moment, is there anyone there who can 
help.’ 

Retail Manager Stevenage 
 
 

Objective 
 

� We will actively support and encourage business interaction with 
voluntary and community groups. 

 
 

Page 34



 

 21 

Priority - Volunteering 

 
Volunteers don’t get paid not because they’re worthless, but because they are priceless.  
Sherrie Anderson – Volunteering Co-ordinator 
 
The council believes that an active and diverse volunteer base is crucial to the sector and 
the well-being of the community and it also recognises the challenges involved in sourcing 
and keeping people with the appropriate skill level. 
 
Throughout our consultation the need for improvements in this area has become clear, 
both in terms of the number of people coming forward to volunteer as well as an increase 
in the capacity for support and development provided to individuals.  
 
Nationally the number of people volunteering their time has decreased and is at the lowest 
it has been for ten years.17 The picture of volunteering in Stevenage is somewhat different. 
Support services suggest an increase in people coming forward to volunteer, possibly due 
to increased redundancies and therefore motivated by personal development as well as 
personal endeavour. 
 
The rise and fall of volunteering rates are most likely to be caused by several factors. 
Locally it is important that regardless of the environment, more local people are attracted 
to volunteering, are well matched, supported and retained. 
 
The council acknowledges that volunteers are not a free resource. Moreover they require 
initial and on-going investment from the support service placing them as well as the 
community group who may have to provide, for example, one-to-one support and training. 
  
Consultation with our partners has told us that there are many challenges in attracting and 
retaining volunteers. People volunteering their personal time are motivated by different 
aspects of volunteering. Individuals may be retired or not able to work in full-time 
employment due to health reasons or do not need a salaried position. Some may be 
motivated by the desire to keep fit and active or to develop skills for the labour market. 
Varying motivations affect the suitability of a volunteer placement and the organisation’s 
ability to attract and retain people with the appropriate skill set and interest. 
 
The council is committed to supporting the expansion of our volunteering base with its 
management lying at the centre of an infrastructure hub. We are keen to see a volunteer 
base better proportioned to the volunteering requirements of the sector and suggest this 
may be achieved through the establishment of a brokerage service. 
 
Successful volunteering brokerages often levy a fee to private business to organise 
volunteering opportunities for their staff. Our consultation has shown that we need to take 
advantage of the corporate sector’s desire to contribute to the voluntary and community 
sector and this may be an opportunity for the Sector. Our corporate survey told us that 
approximately 29% of the businesses we spoke to release employees to volunteer. 
 
In talking to the sector and local businesses about collaboration, we were keen to further 
explore the potential for volunteering. When asked about their greatest needs, over half of 
voluntary and community groups surveyed said that ‘help finding volunteers’ was a key 

                                            
17

 National Citizenship Survey – Coalition Govt September 2011 

Page 35



 

 22 

issue. Yet when they were asked what contribution they would most like to see from the 
business community only 9% suggested volunteering. This may be because pressures 
around funding take priority or it may reflect the difficulties local groups have experienced 
in accommodating private sector volunteers. 
 
It is clear that the capacity for volunteering in Stevenage should be expanded and we will 
work with partners to achieve this. 
 

Objective 
 

� We will encourage and support the expansion of the volunteer base and 
volunteering services in Stevenage. 

 

Page 36



 

 23 

Measuring Performance  
 
The vision and objectives within this strategy will be addressed through the development 
and implementation of a detailed action plan. This action plan will present a clear work 
programme for on-going consultation, enablement and support of the voluntary and 
community sector in Stevenage. The plan will be produced by an action group consisting 
of council officers and partners from across the voluntary and community sector.  
 
To ensure we deliver against our objectives it is important that we monitor the 
implementation of activities that fall within this strategy. This action group will ensure that 
the overarching principles of this strategy are turned into measurable actions and activities 
with SMART18 targets and milestones which are regularly performance managed. 
 

 

Our commitment to Equality 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed. The assessment considered the 
implications of the strategy on equality groups to ensure this strategy is compliant with the 
Equality Act 2010. The assessment found that this strategy will help to support a range of 
equality groups across the town by ensuring a strong, vibrant and resilient voluntary and 
community sector which delivers services for such groups. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
18

 Specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and time bound. 

Page 37



 

 24 

Contact details 
 
For more information on this strategy or any other issue relating to the voluntary and 
community sector in Stevenage please contact 
 
Corporate Policy & Partnerships Team 
Stevenage Borough Council 
Daneshill House 
Danestrete 
Stevenage  
SG1 1HN 
 
Tel: 01438 242457 
 
Email: policy@stevenage.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



 

 25 

Appendix one – A profile of Stevenage 
 
The voluntary and community sector in Stevenage has been working to improve the lives 
of people in the town since it grew as a designated new town in the 1950s, when early 
arrivals set up the first community associations. The sector has evolved to meet the broad 
range of needs presented by local people. 
 
Stevenage is a medium-sized town set in the relatively affluent, rural Hertfordshire. 
However the town presents a very different picture to the county as a whole, experiencing 
problems often found today in bigger towns or inner-cities. 
 
Whilst Stevenage has a lower proportion of people from an ethnic background than other 
areas in the East of England and South East. We do have a diverse mix of beliefs and 
ethnicities across the town with a significant increase in recent years of migrants from 
Eastern Europe, predominantly Poland. The town accommodates a broad range of 
religious beliefs and practices including Jewish, Hindu, Muslim and Sikh, with 
approximately two thirds of the community stating their religion as Christian.  
 
Compared to the county and sometimes the UK as a whole, poor health is a factor 
affecting a significant section of the community. Several health indicators are improved 
and improving, but obesity, smoking and binge drinking are too prevalent and comparative 
life expectancy suggests disadvantage within our community. 
 
Stevenage is quite a young town in terms of having an above average number of youths 
but also a lower than average number of pensioners. Issues such as teenage pregnancy, 
lowered educational progress and youth unemployment remain significant across the 
town. However this does not negate the need to address the issues of a range of 
vulnerable communities including, older people, ethnic minorities and people with 
disabilities. 
 
Compared to most local authorities, the borough has a much higher level of people in 
social housing. The town provides some 40,000 jobs, however many of these jobs are 
occupied by people commuting into town. Local people are less likely to be employed in 
managerial positions, compared to the rest of the county. People living in Stevenage 
generally earn less than in the rest of Hertfordshire. 
 
So Stevenage, our local partnership continues to work to improve the quality of life for our 
community. The partnership brings together organisations from the public, private and 
voluntary sectors to focus on the economic, social and environmental well-being of our 
town. Partnership groups including the Social Inclusion Partnership and the Health and 
Wellbeing Partnership are actively working to redress some of the social inequalities 
described above. 
  

Page 39



 

 26 

Stevenage in 2011 
 
The town’s population is approximately 81,000 and likely to increase to 90,000 by 2031. 
 
In the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2010 Stevenage is ranked 173 out of 354 districts in 
England (where 1 is most deprived). In Hertfordshire, Stevenage is the most deprived 
district. 
 
2011 Health Profile tells us: 

• Life expectancy is 6.4 years lower for men and 5.4 years lower for women in the 
most deprived areas than in the least deprived. 

• One in five adults binge drink 

• One in four adults is obese  

• 23.5% of the population smoke. 
 
There are 35,000 homes in Stevenage and 29.6% is social rented housing. The council 
housing waiting list stands at 6,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 

 27 

Appendix two - How the council supports the sector. 
 
In August 2011 the council’s Stronger Communities Officer spoke to colleagues across the 
council to identify all contributions made by Stevenage Borough Council to the voluntary 
and community sector. Our intention was to use this information to guide us in our thinking 
about how we can support the sector in the future. 
 
The exercise revealed a large breadth of support including the following: 
 

o direct financial support in the form of grants, funding or one-off financial 
contributions 

o in-kind financial support in the form of discretionary rate relief and discounted rates 
o in-kind support in the form of rent for council owned or managed properties 
o in-kind support in the form of leasehold properties on peppercorn rents 
o subsidised or free services such as waste and environmental services 
o in-kind support in terms of the costs of officer time given to training, advice and 

wider support given to the sector 
o other in-kind support such as research, the funding of events for the sector and free 

advertising 
o One-to-one training and support in sourcing and applying for external funding 
o A broad range of community and neighbourhood development services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



 

 28 

Appendix three – the Localism Act explained 
 
The Localism Act aims to move power from central government back into the hands of 
individuals, communities and councils. The Act is split across five core themes of 
community empowerment; decentralisation and strengthening local democracy; reform of 
the planning system; social housing reform; and London. 
 
. 
Key points of the Localism Act include:  

• a new power for local people to approve or veto excessive council tax rises through 
a local referendum, but with the intention that the majority of local councils will fall 
below the level set by the secretary of state;  

• a right for local councils – as well as voluntary and community groups, social 
enterprises and local authority employees delivering a service – to challenge a local 
authority, by expressing an interest in running any service for which they are 
responsible;  

• the chance for communities to develop a bid and raise the capital to buy a local 
community asset when it comes on the open market;  

• measures to give people, councillors and councils the power to instigate a local 
referendum on any local issue;  

• a new general power of competence to provide local authorities – including certain 
local councils – to enable them to do anything apart from that which is specifically 
prohibited;  

• freeing up councillors to be able to campaign, to express views on issues and to 
vote on those matters, without fear of being unjustly accused of having a closed 
mind on a particular issue;  

• the abolition of the Standards Board regime and a new duty on local authorities to 
promote and maintain high standards of conduct, including provision for the 
adoption of a voluntary code of conduct;  

• changes to the Community Infrastructure Levy19 including provisions requiring some 
of these funds to be passed to neighbourhoods where the development has taken 
place;  

• a new right for local councils to shape their local areas through neighbourhood 
plans which will enable communities to permit development – in full or in outline – 
without the need for planning applications;  

• the power for communities to take forward development in their area without the 
need to apply for planning permission, subject to meeting certain safeguards and securing 
50 per cent support of the community through a referendum.

                                            

19
 The Community Infrastructure Levy is a levy that local authorities can choose to charge on new 

developments in their area. The money can be used to support development by funding infrastructure that 
the council, local community and neighbourhoods want. 

  

 

Page 42



 

 29 

Appendix four – How we have consulted 

 
Since December 2010, the council has engaged in a series of consultation exercises to 
better understand how we can support the sector to secure positive outcomes for 
Stevenage in challenging times. This engagement has contributed to the main themes of 
this strategy. 
 
 

o Voluntary sector questionnaire December 2010 
 
In December 2010, the council commissioned the survey ‘Shaping the future of the 
voluntary sector in Stevenage’. Some key findings are referred to in this strategy. 
 

o Voluntary Sector Summit  January 2011 
 
Following the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review in October 2010, the 
council held an event to inform the voluntary and community sector in the borough of the 
reduction in the council’s budget and to involve them in discussions on ways to sustain 
their organisations in the challenging economic climate. 
 

o Sharing our vision  
 
Stevenage Borough Council’s Stronger Communities Officer has been meeting with 
groups and associations in the sector. In addition, in July 2011, we contacted over 100 
voluntary and community sector partners to share our emerging thoughts on new ways of 
working.  
 

o Stevenage survey of businesses  
 
A key theme to come out of early consultation was the need to better engage with local 
businesses. To this end, Stevenage Borough Council commissioned a comprehensive 
business sector survey with 394 local businesses. 
 
 

o Voluntary and community sector survey – links to the Business community 
 
In order to compliment the survey undertaken with the business community, we decided to 
mirror the approach taken above by contacting the sector to create a picture of how they 
were being supported by local business. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 

 30 

 
Social Enterprise – some key facts   
 
Social enterprises are currently being established at three times the rate 
of small private firms (2011). 
 
The social enterprise sector is outstripping small and medium sized 
enterprises in growth, confidence and innovation. 
 
They are most likely to start up and work in Britain’s most deprived 
communities (20 most deprived communities in the UK are seeing 
greatest rise of social enterprise). 
 
Social enterprises reinvest in the communities where they are based. 
 
Private businesses wishing to move beyond traditional corporate social 
responsibility are starting to trade more with social enterprises. 
 
Social enterprises have a high proportion of black and minority ethnic 
and women directors than traditional small and medium sized 
enterprises. 
 

‘Fightback Britain’ – A report on the 
state of social enterprise survey 2011 
 
 

Appendix five - Social enterprise is a growing force in the UK   
 

In recent years, the social enterprise sector has been growing steadily, despite the 
economic downturn. Different governments have in turn, watched and encouraged the 
development of this sector, promoting not-for-profit enterprise as a model for public service 
innovation.    
 
The report ‘Fightback Britain’ reports on the state of social enterprises in 2011 and 
provides an encouraging picture of this rapidly developing movement. 
 
There is a belief that concerns for how the voluntary and Community sector can continue 
to support vulnerable people and communities, while experiencing economic difficulty, 
have actually brought social enterprise to the fore. 
 
 
‘The UK’s economic woes have hot-housed the need for a business model that delivers 
sustainable economic growth while fostering social change and innovation.’  

Fightback Britain’ 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

 31 

 
 
 
 
 

             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
             
              
 
 
 
 
 
 

Enterprise and innovation in the voluntary and community sector-a case  
Study 
 
The Bromley by Bow Centre is an exceptional example of what can be achieved through 
not-for-profit business models. 
 
When Reverend Andrew Mawson OBE arrived at the centre in 1984 he found an elderly 
congregation of twelve people. He persuaded this dwindling group to open its doors to the 
wider community in order to save their church.  
 
They found a community ‘rich in culture and creativity’. Local artists took up rent-free 
residence in return for offering workshops. A nursery was set up and as the church became 
used by different faith groups, the building became a focal point for the entire community, 
growing and adapting by being responsive to the needs of the community. The church was 
redesigned, for example the rows of pews were replaced with furniture that could be 
reconfigured for different uses and the surrounding site was to continue growing over the 
years, sustaining itself through enterprise and attracting funding through its innovative 
approach. 
 
‘the Bromley by Bow Centre kept innovating and experimenting, challenging conventions 
and confounding expectations’  
 
The centre which helped to define the term ‘social enterprise’ before its widespread use 
went on to provide the first, cutting-edge healthy living centre and pioneered an outreach 
model that brought local people out of isolation. 
 
Today the Bromley by Bow Centre is an organisation with a turnover in excess of £3 million 
a year and over 100 staff. 
It is the third largest provider of adult education in the borough of Tower Hamlets with 
numerous spin-off businesses. The centre has a national and international reputation for 
best practice in social innovation. 
 
For more information see the Bromley by Bow Centre website at:  http://www.bbbc.org.uk/ 
 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



VCS Review Presentation 

Existing strategies and forward planning

P
age 47



Context – The Last Review 

• 2012 – 2015 strategy document 

tied to the Localism Act 

• Sustainability key focus 

• Clear community commissioning 

model

• 4 Priority areas selected for 

development 

• Each priority area with clear 

objectives 

• Clear links to co-operative 

council development 

• No clear action plan on how 

objectives were measured for 

impact and outcomes 

P
age 48



Priority 1 – Voice and Representation 

Objectives

a) We will work to promote SoStevenage representatives and local councillors 

b) We will support the development of a communications hub and database

c) We will renew Stevenage Compact, agreeing with partners on how and when this 

should happen

d) We will develop a work programme for continued consultation with the voluntary 

and community sector

e) We will support the development of the independent Stevenage Community 

Network

Clear evidence of progress against objective  

Moderate evidence of progress objective 

No clear evidence of progress against objective    

P
age 49



Priority 2 – Sustainability 

Objectives

a) We will continue to promote local voluntary and community organisations in coming 

together to form partnerships and collaborations  

b) We will encourage voluntary and community organisations to join the Stevenage 

Community Network 

c) We will engage the sector in the development of robust, innovative infrastructure 

services 

d) We will support the sector in becoming ‘contract ready’ for new opportunities 

e) We will encourage the support of innovative models in the sector 

P
age 50



Priority 3 – Harnessing Corporate Giving

Objectives

a) We will actively support and encourage business interaction with voluntary and 

community groups  

P
age 51



Priority 4 – Volunteering 

Objectives

a) We will encourage and support the expansion of the volunteer base and 

volunteering services in Stevenage 

P
age 52



The National VCS Context  

• Micro charities (funding levels under £10,000 per annum) now account for 48% of those registered

• Small and medium sized charities (£10,000 - £1,000,000) continue to struggle financially, this is a 

particular concern in ‘generic’ and local community work and youth work charities 

• Reserve levels are still poor in the majority of small and medium sized charities, leading to a lack 

of security and stability 

• Local authority commissioning often favours large national charities were loss and cost 

effectiveness can be structured into the larger charity work programme 

• 90% of the sector’s £112.7bn of total assets – such as property, cash and investments – are held 

by just 3 per cent of charities.

• Big charities continue to grow and develop with high levels of resilience in adapting to new funding 

challenges with London charities dominating income and resources (18.5 billion in London 

compared to 900m across the entire North-East of England)

• 14 million people volunteer at least once a month, with the highest levels in the 16-25 year group

*The UK Civil Society Almanac 2017 NCVO

Legal and policy developments upcoming 

• Stronger Charities for a stronger society – Select committee on charities report 2017/18

• Review of the charity commission 

• The civil society strategy in development 

P
age 53



The Hertfordshire Context

• Children’s centre commissioning and decisions – Barnardo's  

• County commissioning and localism 

• A reducing youth service offer and the need for youth engagement

• New Herts CC Compact group

• Are we working together or delivering in isolation? 

• How do we compare to other districts in our support for VCS development

• Centrally commissioned VCS infrastructure support (Connect Hertfordshire) 

and large number of locally based CVS/Community Action organisations 

P
age 54



The Stevenage Context 

• Tapered funding for community centres and groups 

• Improving sustainability to protect services 

• Green space volunteering and wider corporate volunteering opportunities 

• Advice services and large scale commissioning

• Structures for monitoring commissioning arrangements and ensuring success  

• Diversity in VCS engagement 

• Are we working together or delivering in isolation? 

• FTFC, CTOC and town centre regeneration: are the voluntary sector key partners? 

• Positive examples of community action at a local level 

• Rent in kind policy 

• Historical grants and the ability to assess success in grant giving (See next slide) 

P
age 55



Stevenage VCS grants (not including rent in kind or community centre 

maintenance)

Organisation 2017/18 2018/19 2020 Contract type

CAB £160,000 £160,000 £160,000 Rolling 

North Herts CVS £6,220 £4,670 £3,120 Ends 2020

Volunteer Centre £5,160 £3,870 £2,580 Ends 2020

Crossroads Care £8,200 £6,160 £4,120 Ends 2020

Stevenage 

Community Trust 

£5,000 £5,000 £5,000 Rolling 

Bedwell C.A £6,010 £4,510 £3,010 Ends 2020

Chells Manor C.A £4,360 £3,280 £2,200 Ends 2020

Chells C.A £4,360 £3,280 £2,200 Ends 2020

Bragbury Centre £4,360 £3,280 £2,200 Ends 2020

Old Stevenage C.A £5,140 £3,860 £2,580 Ends 2020

Oval C.A £5,360 £4,030 £2,700 Ends 2020

Pin Green C.A £3,840 £2,880 £1,920 Ends 2020

Shephall C.A £2,830 £2,120 £1,410 Ends 2020

St Nicholas C.A £5,840 £4,380 £2,920 Ends 2020

Symonds Green C.A £6,750 £5,070 £3,390 Ends 2020

Douglas Drive £6,730 £5,060 £3,390 Ends 2020

TOTAL £240,160 221,450 £202,740

P
age 56



Opportunities 

CNM Programme

- Building neighbourhood capabilities 

- Improving and developing civic pride 

- Providing opportunities for community action and volunteering

- Ensuring co-operative working in identifying and resolving neighbourhood concerns  

Corporate Social Responsibility 

- Improving sustainability in small and medium sized charities via skills sharing and volunteering 

- Working with business to enable pump priming of social action projects 

- Facilitating small VCS groups to apply for funding via advice and    signposting 

Advice Services Re-Commission

- Potential to re-shape the offer and increase community engagement 

Filling the gap

- Opportunities to develop a wider youth engagement offer as services reduce 

Communication

- Improving the ability of the VCS to work in a collaborative way 

- Developing place conversations with HCC / NHS and partners   

P
age 57



Thoughts?

• What else could Stevenage BC do to support VCS 

development?

• How does Stevenage BC support sustainability in 

the sector?

• Could resources and contracts adapt to meet need?

P
age 58



A written understanding between the voluntary 
and community sector and statutory sectors about 
how they will co-operate and continue to develop 
positive working relationships for the benefit of  
Hertfordshire’s communities. The Compact process  
is one of  learning, development and dialogue.

 #HertsCompact

If you require any further information about the Hertfordshire 
Compact or to see it in a different format, including Easy Read, 
please contact corporate.policyteam@hertfordshire.gov.uk

NEW Updated 
case studies 
for 2017-18

Page 59



2
Hertfordshire Compact

Foreword

From Teresa Heritage, Cabinet Member for Public Health, 
Localism and Libraries, Hertfordshire County Council

The Hertfordshire Compact is a set of principles to which organisations are being 
asked to commit that will ensure effective design of policies, programmes and public 

services and support the development of a strong, diverse and independent voluntary sector. 
 
I know this agreement will play an important part in improving the partnership between the sectors 
for the benefit of everyone in our communities. The voluntary and community sector has a vital 
and growing part to play and it’s crucial that we include them in our strategic approach to service 
development. This is the start of the journey and we have a good foundation of mutual respect and 
trust to build on.
 
Over the last year the Hertfordshire Compact has been developed by a steering group comprised 
of representatives from Hertfordshire County Council, the NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups, 
the Police and Crime Commissioner’s office, the district councils and representatives from the 
Hertfordshire voluntary and community sector.  

Hertfordshire County Council is calling on all statutory, voluntary and community organisations in 
the county to sign up to an agreement that will help them work together better to improve the lives 
of residents. 

From Jacquie Hime, Executive Director of  North Herts CVS, 
Voluntary and Community Sector Representative and  
Compact Co-Chair

Voluntary and Community Sector organisations have a valuable role to play in 
helping public sector organisations understand the needs of local populations and identify gaps 
in services. We have good community links, are in a strong position to engage hard-to-reach 
audiences and to help drive change at a grassroots level. The Voluntary and Community Sector 
recognises the importance of the Hertfordshire Compact and believes that it marks a valuable 
starting point for the development of closer and improved partnership working between all sectors. 

The last twelve months have been spent working collaboratively to produce a document which sets 
out shared values and principles.  As a group of Hertfordshire chief officers we are fully committed 
to the Hertfordshire Compact as a way of working to achieve real outcomes.  We would ask that 
you read our local agreement and sign up to its principles for the benefit of our local communities.  

Page 60



3
Hertfordshire Compact Working Together  /  Better Together

Introduction
The Hertfordshire Compact is a written understanding between the voluntary and community sector 
and statutory sectors about how they will co-operate and continue to develop positive working 
relationships for the benefit of Hertfordshire’s communities. The Compact process is one of learning, 
development and dialogue. The agreement has been developed by the Hertfordshire Compact 
steering group, a multi-agency group responsible for leading on the implementation, monitoring and 
championing of the Hertfordshire Compact. The group includes representation from a number of 
Hertfordshire’s statutory and voluntary and community sector agencies.

The main aims of the Hertfordshire Compact are to build on existing partnerships, develop a range of 
shared principles and undertakings and develop the relationship between the sectors through mutual 
respect and trust, so that better public services can be provided across Hertfordshire. This agreement 
reflects the Hertfordshire Voluntary Sector Commissioning strategy and will operate in conjunction 
with the Procurement regulations of all the statutory organisations involved.  Although this Compact 
is not legally binding, the intention is that it should be followed to promote good quality working 
relationships between voluntary and community sector organisations and statutory organisations 
across Hertfordshire.

An effective partnership between the statutory sector and voluntary and community sector will  
help achieve the following outcomes:

•	A strong, diverse and independent voluntary and community sector
•	� Effective and transparent design and development of  policies, programmes and  

public services
•	Responsive and high-quality programmes and services
•	Clear arrangements for managing changes to programmes and services
•	An equal and fair society

Case Study
Hertfordshire County Council in partnership with 22 organisations from the voluntary and 
community sector was successful in securing funding from the Big Lottery Building Better 
Opportunities Fund (BBO).  BBO is the result of  the Big Lottery matching funds from the 
European Social Fund for projects across England that tackle poverty and promote social 
inclusion. Launched in March 2017, the partnership is delivering three projects for three 
years across the county that tackle poverty and promote social inclusion by helping to 
address barriers into employment:

•	 STRIVE in Herts Project – supporting those who are most disadvantaged in the labour 
market to move towards and into sustained employment or education.

•	 Herts Youth Motivator Project – providing individualised tailored support to young 
people most disadvantaged in the labour market to move towards and into sustained 
employment, education or training

•	 MILE in Herts Project – building financial confidence through activities focussed on 
addressing the root causes of  poverty which create barriers to work

Working together the partnership has taken a unique approach and is committed to 
collaboration to maximise outcomes for those people in Hertfordshire that can benefit from  
the projects by being supported to make creative changes to improve their quality of  life.

Page 61



4
Hertfordshire Compact

1. �A strong, diverse and independent voluntary and 
community sector

Undertakings by Statutory Organisations (SO):

1.1 �Respect and uphold the independence of Voluntary and Community Sector organisations (VCS) 
to deliver their mission including their right to campaign regardless of any relationship financial  
or otherwise which may exist.

1.2 �Ensure VCS are supported and resourced in a reasonable and fair manner where they are 
commissioned or funded by SOs to fulfil their aims.

1.3 �Ensure that SO’s collectively recognise the need to resource, in a range of ways, local support 
and development organisations in order to assist VCS with their capacity to deliver  
positive outcomes.

1.4 �Ensure greater transparency by making data and information more accessible; helping VCS to 
make appropriate challenges and allowing them to access new and existing markets of service 
provision.

1.5 �Consider ways to facilitate greater VCS access to SO premises and resources where this will 
produce public benefits.

1.6 �Create a transparent and open commissioning environment to foster good relations, encourage 
co-operation and partnership. 

Undertakings by Voluntary and Community Sector:

1.7 �When campaigning or advocating ensure that robust evidence is provided including information 
about the source and range of people and communities represented.

1.8 �Ensure independence is upheld focusing on the cause represented regardless of any relationship 
they have with the SO financial or otherwise.

1.9 �Monitor and evaluate activities that are undertaken to ensure they achieve the  
organisations mission.

Joint Undertakings:

1.10 �Encourage, facilitate and support volunteer engagement in the development and delivery of 
public services. 

1.11 �When working jointly with another organisation, respect each other’s organisational processes 
and use established procedures to address any concerns or queries that arise.

1.12 �Prior to  initiating contact with the press, using social media, or making public announcements, 
adopt a “no surprises” approach so that no organisation is unfairly or unnecessarily deprived of 
information or reasonable notice.

1.13 �Take advantage of opportunities to promote the Compact as the agreed basis for effective 
partnership working.

Page 62



5
Hertfordshire Compact Working Together  /  Better Together

2. �Effective and transparent design and development 
of  policies, programmes and public services

Undertakings by Statutory Organisations:

2.1 �Ensure that social, environmental and economic value forms a standard part of designing, 
developing and delivering policies programmes and services. All policy decisions are subject to 
the Equalities Impact Assessment process.

2.2 �Consider the social impact that may result from policy and programme development and in 
particular consider how these would impact local efforts to inspire and encourage social action 
and to empower communities.

2.3 �Work with VCS from the earliest possible stage to design policies, programmes and services. 
Ensure those likely to have a view are involved and remove barriers that may prevent 
organisations contributing.

2.4 �Give notice of forthcoming consultations relevant to the VCS, allowing where possible enough 
time for VCS to involve their service users, beneficiaries, members, volunteers and trustees in 
preparing responses. Where it is appropriate, and enables meaningful engagement, conduct 12-
week formal written consultations, with clear explanations and rationale for shorter time frames or 
a more informal approach.

2.5 �Provide feedback, where appropriate, to explain how respondents including those who felt there 
may be barriers, have influenced the design and development of policies programmes and public 
services including where respondents’ views have not been acted upon. 

Undertakings by Voluntary and Community Sector:

2.6 �Engage with SOs as they develop policies, programmes and services that affect local 
communities and VCS services. 

2.7 �Be clear, when making representation, who is being represented in what capacity and on what 
basis that representation is being made. 

2.8 �When putting forward ideas, focus on evidence based solutions, with clear proposals for  
positive outcomes.

Joint Undertakings:

2.9 Encourage and facilitate engagement in both development and delivery of services. 

2.10 �Seek, and take on board, the views of service users, clients, beneficiaries and wider members of 
the public in the design and development of programmes and services, including the use of data 
that is available. Aim to find solutions that are evidence-based and clearly able to demonstrate 
positive outcomes.

2.11 �Work in partnership to assess implications of new policies, legislation and guidance aiming to 
reduce the bureaucratic burden particularly on small organisations.

Page 63



6
Hertfordshire Compact

3. �Responsive and high-quality programmes  
and services

Undertakings by Statutory Organisations:

3.1 �Enable the VCS to have a greater role and more opportunities in delivering public services 
in line with the Hertfordshire statutory organisations commissioning strategies. Comply with 
the requirement in the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 to consider the economic, 
environmental and social benefits of all procurement practice.

3.2 �Consider a range of ways to fund and support VCS where they are delivering SO aims and 
objectives including grants, contracts, sub-contracting and use of resources and premises. 
Work to remove barriers that may prevent VCS accessing SO funding thereby enabling smaller 
organisations to become involved in delivering services where they are best placed to achieve the 
desired outcomes.

3.3 Ensure transparency by providing a clear rationale for relevant funding decisions.

3.4 �Commit to multi-year funding, where appropriate, and where it adds value for money. The 
funding term should reflect the time it will take to deliver the outcome. If multi-year funding is not 
considered to be the best way of delivering the objective, explain the reasons for the decision.

3.5 �Ensure well managed and transparent application and tendering processes which are 
proportionate to the desired objectives and outcomes of programmes.

3.6 �Agree with VCSs how outcomes, including those of social, environmental or economic value, 
will be monitored before a contract or funding agreement is made. Ensure that monitoring and 
reporting is relevant and proportionate to the nature and size of the opportunity. Be clear about 
what information is being asked for and why and how it will be used.

3.7 �Ensure equal treatment across sectors including reporting and monitoring arrangements when 
tendering for contracts.

3.8 �Recognise that when VCS apply for funding they can include appropriate and relevant overheads 
including the costs associated with items such as collaboration with other organisations and 
training and volunteer involvement.

3.9 �Discuss and allocate risks to the organisation(s) best equipped to manage them. Where prime 
contractors are used ensure they adhere to the principles of this Compact in allocating risk. 
Ensure delivery terms and risks are proportionate to the nature and value of the opportunity.

3.10 �Ensure that the widest possible range of organisations can be involved in the provision of 
services through appropriate funding and financing models, for example outcome based 
payments and payment in advance of expenditure. Payment in advance of expenditure should 
be considered on a case-by-case basis where this represents value for money.

3.11 �Ensure all bodies distributing funds on the SO’s behalf adhere to the commitments in this 
Compact. This includes the relationship between prime contractors and their supply chains. 
Demonstrate how funding arrangements and financial support can allow smaller and specialist 
providers to play a greater part.

Page 64



7
Hertfordshire Compact Working Together  /  Better Together

Undertakings by Voluntary and Community Sector:

3.12 �Ensure eligibility for funding before applying and be explicit about how outcomes will  
be achieved.

3.13 �Ensure robust governance arrangements so that organisations can best manage any risk 
associated with service delivery and financing models including giving funders early notice of 
significant changes in circumstances.

3.14 �Be open and transparent about reporting, recognising that monitoring (whether internal or 
external) is an aspect of good management practice.

3.15 �Demonstrate the social, environmental or economic value of the programmes and services 
provided, where appropriate.

3.16 �Help facilitate feedback from users and communities to the SO to help improve delivery of 
programmes and services.

3.17 Recognise that SO can legitimately expect VCS to give public recognition of its funding.

Joint Undertakings:

3.18 �In order to apply Compact principles in the distribution of European funding we will work together 
to engage managing authorities, opt in partners and successful bidders with the undertakings 
of Hertfordshire Compact. Where conflicts arise we will discuss the potential effects and agree 
solutions together.

3.19 �Encourage feedback through an annual survey from a range of sources on the effectiveness of 
the SO/ VCS partnership and how successful it has been in delivering shared objectives. Place 
this feedback in the public domain.

Case Study
The Community Navigator Scheme navigates access to services for people with 
complex problems, who need support from many different directions, usually including 
health, social services and the local community. The partnership made up of  
Watford Community Housing Trust; Dacortium; Carers in Hertfordshire; POhWER; 
Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning Group and the Community Wellbeing Team 
at Hertfordshire County Council are working together to integrate support for 
people with multiple needs and have already identified compelling stories of  life-
chances being transformed by working in this way. This integrated model has built trust, 
understanding and deep respect between the voluntary and statutory sectors.

Page 65



8
Hertfordshire Compact

4. �Clear arrangements for managing changes to 
programmes and services

Undertakings by Statutory Organisations:

4.1 �If a programme or service is encountering problems agree with the VCS a timetable of actions to 
improve performance before making a decision to end a financial relationship.

4.2 �Assess the impact on beneficiaries, service users and volunteers before deciding to reduce or 
end funding. Assess the need to re-allocate funds to another organisation serving the  
same group.

4.3 �Where there are restrictions or changes to future resources discuss with VCSs the potential 
implications as early as possible, give organisations the opportunity to respond and consider the 
response, fully respecting sector expertise before making a final decision.

4.4 �Give a minimum of three months’ notice in writing when changing or ending a funding relationship 
or other support apart from in exceptional circumstances and provide a clear rationale for why the 
decision has been taken.

Undertakings by Voluntary and Community Sector:

4.5 �Plan for the end of funding to reduce any potential negative impact on beneficiaries and  
the organisation.

4.6 Contribute positively to reviews of programmes and funding practice.

4.7 �Advise SOs on the social, environmental or economic impact of funding changes and on ways to 
minimise their effects on people in vulnerable situations.

Joint Undertaking:

4.8 �Jointly plan for the end of contracts and funding to minimise negative impacts on beneficiaries 
and services.  

Case Study
Some of  the partners within Welwyn Hatfield Domestic Abuse Forum include Hatfield, 
Welwyn Garden City, Welwyn & Knebworth Children’s Centre Groups; Welwyn 
Garden City and Hatfield Schools Partnerships; Welwyn Hatfield Women’s 
Refuge, Gracemead House, Crane and Staples, Paradigm Housing Small Steps 
Project; Welwyn Garden City United Reformed Church; Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council and Herts Community NHS Trust, recognise how hard it can be for those 
experiencing domestic abuse to reach out for help. The members therefore have 
come together as a collective voice to raise awareness of  the support that is 
available. The partnership also trains and advises professionals on the complex nature 
of  domestic abuse and is currently piloting a training session for professionals, ‘My Child 
and I’, about the impact of  domestic abuse on children. The partners are passionate 
about their work and draw strength from working together.

Page 66



9
Hertfordshire Compact Working Together  /  Better Together

5. �An equal and fair society  
w

Undertakings by Statutory Organisations:

5.1 �Work with VCS that represent, support or provide services to people specifically protected by 
legislation and other under-represented and disadvantaged groups. Understand the specific 
needs of these groups by actively seeking the views of service users and clients. Take these 
views into account, including assessing impact, when designing and implementing policies, 
programmes and services.

5.2 �Acknowledge that organisations representing specific disadvantaged or under-represented 
group(s) can help promote social and community cohesion and should have fair access to  
state funding.

Undertakings by Voluntary and Community Sector:

5.3 �If receiving funding from a SO, show how the value of the work can help that body deliver its 
public sector duties on promoting equality and tackling discrimination.

5.4 �Take practical action, such as through funding bids, to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance 
equality of opportunity and build stronger communities.

Joint Undertaking:

5.5 �Take practical action to foster good relations, eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality 
and to ensure a voice for under-represented and disadvantaged groups. 

Case Study
This project resolves conflict in the community, within families, in schools and in 
the workplace and works with many partner organisations including: Dacorum 
Borough Council; Age UK (Dacorum); Relate (Dacorum, Watford &Three Rivers); 
Hertfordshire County Council; The Office for the Police and Crime Commissioner; 
Affinity Sutton; Hemel Hempstead Business Ambassadors; Mediation Herts 
Volunteer Mediators and many more. In 2016, they mediated in around 100 
neighbour disputes, carried out 10 family mediations and ran four peer mediation 
programmes in schools. Mediation Hertfordshire have worked collaboratively with the 
County Council, local schools, other third sector community groups and most recently 
Relate, to provide more integrated Hertfordshire wide mediation services to vulnerable 
clients. In resolving conflict, the teamwork between the small organisation managing 
this service, Mediation Hertfordshire, and its 40 expert volunteers who do the mediation, 
stands out. This thriving organisation, celebrates its 20th Anniversary in 2018.

Page 67



10
Hertfordshire Compact

Glossary

Consultation Process to gather opinion of 
individuals and organisations in an organised 
and fair way.

Campaign Trying to influence the setting of 
policies and/or change existing policies.

Commissioning A process that organisations 
use to plan, procure, deliver and evaluate 
services for local residents.

Community A group or organisation of people 
working together who identify with a common 
concern or geographical area.

Compact  Agreement between the statutory, 
voluntary and community sectors to work  
in partnership.

Partners/ Partnerships Organisations and 
individuals who agree to work together
for a common aim. Members of a partnership 
can share resources and responsibilities.

Service Users People who use, or benefit from, 
a service. They can also be called customers, 
clients, consumers, beneficiaries and recipients.

Statutory Sector Organisations created 
through Acts of Parliament whose functions are 
determined by law. Local authorities, including 
county, district, borough, parish and town 
councils who are democratically elected and 
accountable to voters and Central Government. 
Statutory Sector organisations have legal 
responsibilities. Other statutory agencies include 
Health Authorities, Police, Probation, Fire and 
Rescue and Ambulance services but these are 
not directly elected and are responsible to the 
appropriate Secretary of State.

Strategy A long term plan for success.

Voluntary and Community Sector This has 
been defined as “Independent voluntary or 
community organisations formed by people 
who have come together of their own free will to 
respond to issues regarding the quality of life of 
themselves or fellow citizens”.

Voluntary Organisation ‘Organisation’ is 
used to refer to any group of people who come 
together for a common purpose and have some 
agreed rules for how they operate together.

A voluntary organisation is:
• �Set up for charitable, social, educational, 

philanthropic or similar purpose, and

• �Required to use any profit or surplus only for 
the organisations purpose, and

• �Not part of any government department, local 
or health authority or any other statutory body

Page 68



11
Hertfordshire Compact Working Together  /  Better Together

Further details

If your organisation wishes to ‘sign up’ to the Hertfordshire Compact and officially adopt the 
obligations please follow the guidelines detailed on the hertfordshire.gov.uk website.

If your organisation is a signatory to the Compact and you think another organisation, also signed 
up to the Compact, has broken the commitments made, or if you think an organisation is not 
meeting the requirements of the Compact please follow the guidelines on the  
hertfordshire.gov.uk website.

If you require any further information about the Hertfordshire Compact or to see it in a different 
format please contact the Hertfordshire Compact Partnership Group via email:  
corporate.policyteam@hertfordshire.gov.uk  
or the Co-Chairs of the Partnership Group

Jacquie Hime
Associate Director
North Herts CVS
Unit 30, Campus Five
Third Avenue
Letchworth Garden City
Hertfordshire
SG6 2JF
Tel: 01462 689400
E: jacquiehime@nhcvs.org.uk

Ruth Harrington
Head of Community Wellbeing
Hertfordshire County Council
Postal point: SFAR 202
Farnham House
Stevenage
Hertfordshire
SG1 2FQ
Tel: 01438 845843
E: Ruth.Harrington@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Page 69



The refreshed Hertfordshire Compact was published in 2016.

D
esign ref: 078561

 #HertsCompact

Page 70



Appendix D

Emerging recommendations of the Support for the Third Sector (Developing a 
Strategy) Scrutiny Topic Group

Topic Group Members: 

Councillors, David Cullen (Chair), Monika Cherney-Craw, Matthew Hurst, Lin Martin-
Haugh, Carol Latif, John Mead, Simon Speller and Marilyn Yarnold-Forrester.

The Topic Group met on three occasions, 2 February, 30 March and 6 April. Two of 
these occasions were all day sessions where the group interviewed the following  
people:

Richard Protheroe, Head of Housing, Partnerships and Communications
Nicola Kilvington, Communications and Partnerships Manager
Pam Shaw, St Nicholas Community Centre Manager
Rose Griffin, The Oval Community Centre Manager
Ann Jansz, Stevenage CVS
Pauline Hickey, Neighbourhood Team Manager
Mandy Williams, Community Development Officer
Marian Hurle, Director Stevenage CAB
Councillor Sherma Batson, Portfolio Holder for Community, Health and Older People
George Ruddock, Third Thursday
Eileen Hutchinson, Third Thursday
Jonathan Prince, Social Impact Group

The notes of the meeting had previously been circulated but will be formally forwarded to 
the Portfolio Holder for Community, Health and Older People and the Strategic Director 
for their consideration whilst they are formulating the Strategy to support the Voluntary 
Sector in Stevenage.

The original intention was that the Topic Group would continue to meet in 2011-12 to 
carry on this Policy Development work supporting the Portfolio Holder and Strategic 
Director, but due to the reorganisation of the Scrutiny structure in 2011-12 this work will 
now be formally handed over to the Executive Portfolio Holder and the Strategic Director 
to incorporate into the work that Officers are currently undertaking. 

The Portfolio Holder for Community, Health and Older People together with the Strategic 
Director and Community Health and Older People Development and Scrutiny Committee 
will need to consider whether the Committee can offer any further assistance in the time 
available before the strategy is formally consulted on with partners prior to the Executive 
agree a Strategy in the Autumn.

Emergent Recommendations

The Strategy should:

 Build on the excellent Voluntary Sector Summit and widen the evidence base with 
further interviews with parts of the sector that were under represented at the 
Summit

 Endeavour to make the Strategy a working document which has an action plan 
that can be delivered – If the strategy’s action plan could identify an early “quick 
win” that tangibly demonstrates the Council’s wish to support the sector this 
would really help engender further goodwill between the sector and the Council. 
The Council does not need another strategy that “sits on a shelf”

Page 71



 Consider delaying the consultation with the sector until September as the 
summer is historically a difficult time to get response from people 

 Help the Council become an enabler to the Sector – “Co-operative Council”.  A 
theme that emerged throughout the Voluntary Sector Summit was the Council’s 
role as an enabler “the Council needs to recognise that community groups do 
more service delivery than the Council does” (quote from Voluntary Sector 
Summit)

- The Co-operative Council – this will be a culture change for the Council 
from ‘we know best’ to a ‘how can we help you’

- The Council in its enabling role when it develops a strategy need to (i) be 
realistic about what it can achieve and (ii) really listen and engage with the 
community groups and make sure it supports their needs

- build on the Voluntary Sector Summit, harness the good will generated on 
the day

The Strategy should within the associated action plan look at ways to:

 Carry out a Mapping exercise for the Voluntary Sector – Help people in the sector 
navigate their way around, especially who to speak to at the Council about a 
particular service or expertise. The Mapping exercise could begin to evaluate the 
social impact of groups in the sector

 Facilitate peer health checks of the Sector’s staff, volunteers and trustees
Use the health checks to direct resources and help to those areas that need it 
most and where it would be strategically advantageous especially regarding 
trustees, business planning and financial governance/funding strategies

 Help the Voluntary Sector develop business plans and funding strategies. 
Voluntary Sector Groups can’t chase funding if it requires them to change their 
modus operandi, as funding is often for projects and capital investment not core 
running costs

 Within the Action Plan develop ways of supporting sustainability in the sector and 
income generation

 Develop capacity building initiatives to increase organisations volunteer base
 Help the Council to maintain a face to face contact with the Voluntary Sector
 Make links with businesses – tap into professional expertise
 Use the experience of the Community Development Officers to shape the 

Strategy and the CDO’s work plans should be guided by the strategy 
 Provide training opportunities to the Voluntary Sector (previously offered but not 

followed through)
 Facilitate more network opportunities
 Encourage parts of the Sector to work together collaboratively where there are 

obvious financial savings to be made
 Be prepared to do things differently
 Continue to be strategic in who the Council helps, there are 357 different 

Voluntary Sector groups in the town, covering 37 generic areas (29 Children and 
Young People, 28 Older People, 26 Education and Skills, 21 Family and 
Support). Consider how many groups are sustainable? Consider whether some 
groups merge or share back office services?

 Consider whether in the future a volunteer hub or central services could be 
created in the town in a building like Swingate House to provide a training and 
central support base for the Sector in the town

 The Strategy should be considered by relevant officers of the Council when other 
cross cutting decisions are implemented, such as any decision on the Council’s 
Asset Management

 The Strategy should recognise the diversity of the groups that operate in the town 
and see that different groups require different support if they are to flourish. For 

Page 72



example a “one-size fits all” approach to the Community Centres in the town is 
not appropriate

 With regards to the Community Centres the Council needs to recognise that there 
are important reputational issues at stake regarding past reviews and 
management contract negotiations, leases etc that the Strategy will need to 
address

 Promote SBC employee volunteering opportunities - Carry out an audit of 
employee skills which could be matched up with Voluntary Sector needs

 If the Strategy supports the use of Social Enterprises it should consider a small 
pilot first

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES - 20 JUNE 2018
	3 RESIDENT ENGAGEMENT SCOPING DOCUMENT
	4 THIRD SECTOR SCRUTINY REVIEW REPORT
	Appendix A - VCS Strategy 2012-2015
	Appendix B - VCS Review Presentation July 2018
	Appendix C - Hertfordshire Compact
	Appendix D - Emerging Recommendations of the Support for the Third Sector 2011 Topic Group


